Agenda - Petitions Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 1 - Senedd Graeme Francis - Committee Clerk
Meeting date: 11 October 2016 Kath Thomas - Deputy Clerk
Meeting time: 09.00 0300 200 6565

SeneddPetitions@assembly.wales

1 Introduction, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest
(Pages 1 - 20)

2 New petitions

2.1 P-05-704 Bring Back January Exams for AS/A level Students

(Pages 21 - 30)
2.2 P-05-707 Teachers' Training Must Include Statutory Training in Autism

(Pages 31 - 37)
2.3 P-05-709 The Circuit of Wales

(Pages 38 - 44)
2.4 P-05-710 Ensure Disabled People can Access Public Transport As and When
They Need it

(Pages 45 - 52)
2.5 P-05-711 Ensure Disabled People’s Housing Adaption Needs Are
Adequately Met

(Pages 53 - 58)
2.6 P-05-712 A Welsh Government Department for Europe would ensure a
clear, strategic and accountable voice for Wales in ongoing negotiations

(Pages 59 - 65)
2.7 P-05-713 The Wildlife Warriors

(Pages 66 - 72)

3 Updates to previous petitions

fv' Cynulliad National
/ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



Economy and Infrastructure
3.1 P-04-539 Save Cardiff Coal Exchange
(Pages 73 - 79)
Health
The following two items will be considered together
3.2 P-04-457 The Charitable Chaplaincy Campaign
(Page 80)
3.3 P-04-474 Support for NHS Chaplaincy Services
(Pages 81 - 94)
3.4 P-05-693 Give Every Child in Wales the Meningitis B Vaccine for Free
(Pages 95 - 98)
Communities and Children
3.5 P-04-519 Abolition of Park Homes Sales Commission
(Pages 99 - 100)
Education
3.6 P-05-702 EMA Attendance Requirements for Young Adult Carers
(Pages 101 - 108)

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the following business:

Item 5.

5 Review of the National Assembly for Wales Petitions System
(Pages 109 - 124)



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a Ite m 1

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



Agenda ltem 2.1

P-05-704 Bring Back January Exams for AS/A level Students.

This petition was submitted by Jasdeep Dhariwal, having collected 84 signatures.

Text of the Petition

This petition aims to raise the issue that AS/A level students do not have the
opportunities they need to achieve what they are capable of. This petition is to

bring January exams back for AS/A level students
Assembly Constituency and Region

e Caerphilly
e South Wales East

Pack Page 21



Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil | Research Service

Briefing for the Petitions Committee

Y Pwyllgor Deisebau | 11 Hydref 2016
Petitions Committee | 11 October 2016

Research Briefing: January A and AS level exams

Petition number: P5-05-704
Petition title: Bring back January exams for AS/A level students
Text of petition:

This petition aims to raise the issue that AS/A level students do not have the opportunities
they need to achieve what they are capable of. This petition is to bring January exams back
for AS/A level students.

Background

A levels are usually taken as two-year courses during Year 12 (age 16 at start of year) and
Year 13 (age 17 at start of year).

AS levels can be taken as a stand-alone qualification, or as the first part of an A level course.
In Wales, they are usually completed at the end of Year 12. ‘A2’ exams and coursework are
added on to an AS level at the end of Year 13, making up a full A level qualification.

January examinations were most commonly used for AS level resits during Year 13. They
were discontinued in Wales after January 2014. The last year students had the opportunity to
take them in England was January 201 3.

The main reason for their discontinuation was to limit the number of opportunities
candidates have to re-sit AS level examinations to one (in the summer of Year 13) and
address what some people have termed ‘a resitting culture’.

Decision to end January exams

Decision in England

In November 2012, following a consultation on A and AS level reform, the qualifications
regulator in England, Ofqual, announced that from September 2013 students in England
would no longer be able to sit A or AS level exams in January. Ofqual said this would
‘address recent concerns over how many times students can sit their exams by reducing resit

Pack Page 22

RS Ref: 16/0880-1

Briff Tudalen | Briefing Page 1


https://www.assembly.wales/en/gethome/e-petitions/Pages/petitiondetail.aspx?PetitionID=961
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20141110161323/http:/comment.ofqual.gov.uk/a-level-reform/section-3-design-rules/size-and-structure/
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140430095946/http:/www.ofqual.gov.uk/news/ofqual-announces-changes-to-a-levels/

opportunities’. The changes applied to students who had already started their A and AS level
courses in September 2012, who were therefore not allowed to resit AS level examinations in
January 2014 (which they had originally taken at the end of Year 12 in summer 201 3).

Policy in Wales

Following the developments in England, the Welsh Government decided in 2013 that the
opportunity to sit exams for A and AS level courses qualifications in January should also not
be available in Wales and that this would take effect for the cohort of students starting
courses in September 2013. However, students who started A level courses in September
2012 and were in Year 13 at the time of January 2014 were offered January examinations.

A decision in Northern Ireland adopted a similar position to Wales.

Retention of ‘coupled’ A and AS levels

The current position in each of Wales, England and Northern lIreland is that no January
examinations are offered for A or AS level. However, a key difference is that in Wales and
Northern Ireland, an AS qualification is still awarded after Year 12 (and still counts towards
the A level), whereas in England A and AS levels have been ‘decoupled’ and are now separate
qgualifications, both awarded at the end of Year 13.

Therefore, for applicants from Wales and Northern Ireland, universities consider the actual AS
level grades of applicants to higher education during the applications process that takes
place during Year 13 rather than projected grades as they must now do in England.

Rationale for abolishing January exams

Most of the changes the Welsh Government has made to qualifications in Wales follow Huw
Evans’ Review of qualifications for 14 to 19 year olds in Wales, published in November 2012.

On the specific issue of January examinations, Huw Evans’ review found mixed views but
recommended the Welsh Government:

- retain the AS/A2 structure
- allow only one resit opportunity, with the higher mark counting

- recognise the range of views expressed by stakeholders about the continued use of units within AS
and A2 and January assessment opportunities. (Recommendation 25) [my emphasis]

The statement in June 2013 from the then Minister for Education and Skills, Leighton
Andrews, which announced the changes, said:

The removal of January assessments will reduce the amount of time spent on assessment rather than
learning; will make the system simpler and more cost effective; and will reduce the examination
burden for teachers and learners. (...)

Whilst the removal of the January assessment window will significantly reduce the opportunities for
learners to resit modules, limiting re-sits to one per module, as is currently the case for GCSEs, will

Pack Page 23

RS Ref: 16/0880-1

Briff Tudalen | Briefing Page 2


http://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/previous-administration/2013/asalevelfuture/?lang=en
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-northern-ireland-22597708
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/qualificationsinwales/revofqualen/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/qualificationsinwales/revofqualen/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/previous-administration/2013/asalevelfuture/?lang=en

also be consistent with the recommendations of the Review of Qualifications - as are all these
announcements.

The then Minister added that the Welsh Government sought stakeholder views on January
assessment opportunities, holding a six week online survey in late 2012 / early 2013.

Reducing opportunities to resit AS level examinations

The

literature accompanying/supporting the decision to discontinue January exams in

England was relatively more explicit about the objective to limit resit opportunities than the
Welsh Government’s.

Ofqual’s 2012 consultation document said

56.0ur national research found that students do not always treat exams seriously if they know that
they have the opportunity to resit. (...) With only one resit allowed, continuous resitting will be
eliminated, so we think that it is reasonable to allow students to count the highest mark when they
resit. [my emphasis]

Similarly, Ofqual’s /mpact assessment of A-level reforms. A study commissioned by Ofqual

said:

Currently, students are able to re-sit exams multiple times, with between two-thirds and three-
quarters of students re-sitting at least one unit. There is concern that the ability to do so results in a
reduction of the prestige associated with A-levels, as students can just ‘get over the finish line’ by
re-sitting multiple times. It may also contribute to grade inflation - for example the percentage of
students who gain a grade A at AS (where re-sitting is much more common) is always higher than the
percentage achieving a grade A at A2 level. [my emphasis]

Several years earlier in 2007, the Qualifications and Curriculum Authority (QCA) in England
published A /evel resitting: a summary of research findings which reported:

It is first important to note that nearly all GCE resitting activity relates to AS units.

The percentage of students achieving a grade A at AS is, across all centre types and subjects, always
higher than the percentage achieving an A at A2 or at A level, a reflection perhaps of the resitting
patterns of candidates.

The resitting of AS units during year 2 has a noticeable impact on students’ A level grades. The
percentage receiving an A grade in a nominal A level result based on year 1 AS results is lower than
the actual percentage of A grades achieved by the same candidates at the end of year 2. It appears
that the AS resitting in year 2 is boosting their grades. [my emphasis]

Pack Page 24
RS Ref: 16/0880-1

Briff Tudalen | Briefing Page 3


http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20141110161323/http:/comment.ofqual.gov.uk/a-level-reform/section-3-design-rules/size-and-structure/
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20141031163546/http:/www.ofqual.gov.uk/files/2012-11-07-impact-assessment-of-a-level-reforms.pdf
http://dera.ioe.ac.uk/8669/1/qca-07-3387-Resit-report.pdf

Other views

A petition against the decision in England to abolish January exams was submitted to the UK
Parliament in 2012/13. The UK Government said the decision was a matter for the
qualifications regulator in England, Ofqual, but said ‘there are no plans to reverse and allow
January assessments’ in England. Ofqgual’s summary of the consultation it held in 2012 (PDF
1.82MB), which preceded the decision in England, reported:

There was ... strong support for removing the January assessment window, as assessments in January
were generally considered to disrupt teaching and learning. Some stakeholders, however, proposed
that the January assessment window should be maintained in special circumstances, with many
commenting that it was important for some protected groups, including students with special
educational needs (SEN) or a disability. [my emphasis]

During the Ofqual consultation, the Russell Group, comprising 24 ‘leading universities’ in the
UK, commented:

The proposed reduction in the number of re-sits that students are allowed to do would be a step in
the right direction. We think it’s fair that people are given a second chance if they have good reasons
for under-performing in an exam, but more recently students have been allowed to do re-sits too
frequently. Our universities are concerned that many of the students who don’t get the grades first or
second time around don’t go on to do as well in their chosen degree course. [my emphasis]

However, the Council for Independent Education (CfIE), which is the professional body for
sixth form colleges in England provided information on the groups of students affected by

the abolition of January exams. This includes:

. Students retaking A levels who now have to wait until June rather than January to resit
examinations, potentially causing them to have a gap before they prepare again for the
exam and leaving them less time to plan for university.

. One-year A-level students compressing an A level into one year for a variety of reasons:
rather than taking the AS exams in January and then using the final six months to focus
on A2, they must now take all exams at the same time, in the summer

. Some schools entered Year 12 students for AS exams in January rather than June,
primarily to gain exam experience but also to generate a sense of urgency. CfIE
acknowledge ‘it was always a somewhat questionable practice in terms of broader
educational objectives’.

. Students resitting AS exams in Year 13: not only to improve a poor result but often to
bump up a good AS grade to an excellent one. Such students must now wait until the
summer, and retake AS units alongside A2.

The National Union of Students (NUS) (PDF 144KB) published the outcome of joint research
with the awarding body, OCR, based on a survey of further and higher education students
between January and March 2014. The NUS said:

Pack Page 25
RS Ref: 16/0880-1

Briff Tudalen | Briefing Page 4


https://petition.parliament.uk/archived/petitions/41702
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20141031163546/http:/www.ofqual.gov.uk/files/2012-11-07-Analysis-of-the-consultation-into-he-involvement-in-a-levels-and-amended-criteria.pdf
http://russellgroup.ac.uk/news/ofqual-a-level-reform-consultation/
http://www.cife.org.uk/cife-general-news/no-january-a-level-and-other-changes/
http://www.nus.org.uk/Global/informing-the-reforms.pdf

There was also considerable opposition to the reduction in the opportunity to re-sit, as January
exams are removed under the new format. Eighty-nine per cent said that this will unfairly penalise
students who have faced significant upheaval in their education and need a second chance. [my
emphasis]

Qualifications Wales

In her response, the Cabinet Secretary for Education, Kirsty Williams, states this is a matter
for Qualifications Wales.

Qualifications Wales was established in September 2015 by the Qualifications Wales Act
2015, which transferred the functions of qualifications regulation away from the Welsh
Government to the new independent organisation. The 2015 Act requires that Qualifications
Wales exercises its functions in line with the following two principal aims:

a) Ensuring that qualifications, and the Welsh qualifications system, are effective for
meeting the reasonable needs of learners in Wales.

b) Promoting public confidence in qualifications and in the Welsh qualifications system.

Members will note from Qualifications Wales’ response, that it believes ‘the reintroduction of
January examinations would weaken public confidence in qualifications taken by Welsh
learners and threaten portability’. It is its ‘regulatory opinion’ that the current position
‘continues to be in the best interests of learners in Wales’.

Every effort is made to ensure that the information contained in this briefing is correct at
the time of publication. Readers should be aware that these briefings are not necessarily
updated or otherwise amended to reflect subsequent changes.

Pack Page 26

RS Ref: 16/0880-1

Briff Tudalen | Briefing Page 5


http://qualificationswales.org/?lang=en
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=11777
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=11777

7
Kirsty Williams AC/AM "g’} ﬁ\(

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg 'X

Cabinet Secretary for Education J J’A

Llywodraeth Cymru
Ein cyf/Our ref KW/05556/16 Welsh Government

Mike Hedges AM

Assembly Member for Swansea East
Chair - Petitions Committee

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

government.committee.business@wales.gsi.gov.uk

22 August 2016
Dear Mike
Thank you for your email of 4 August informing me of a petition received from Jasdeep
Dhariwal calling for the Welsh Government to bring back January exams for AS/A level
students.
| note the points raised by the petition. The Welsh Ministers’ functions relating to the
regulation of qualifications were repealed in September 2015 with the establishment of
Qualifications Wales as the independent regulator. Assessment arrangements, such as the
January examinations for AS and A levels, are a matter for Qualifications Wales. | suggest
that Mr Dhariwal contact Qualifications Wales with this issue.
| trust that you will find this information useful.

Yours sincerely

Kirsty Williams AC/AM
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg
Cabinet Secretary for Education

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd « Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Kirsty.Williams@llyw.cymru
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Kirsty.Williams@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in WelR.agk ﬁ@g@dg& received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Kirsty.Williams@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Kirsty.Williams@gov.wales

\\“0 Cy/?@

%
7CAT10NS

Mr M Hedges AC/AM

Chair

National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

By Email to:

23 September 2016

Dear Mr Hedges
Petition P-05-704 Bring Back January Exams for AS/A level students

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to offer our views on the petition to bring back
examinations in January for AS/A level students.

Welsh Government made the decision that January examinations would no longer be
available to learners starting AS and A levels from September 2013. This followed an
earlier decision made by the Department for Education in England that was based, in
part, on Ofqual’s research into the perception of A levels.

“This showed that the qualifications are considered to be largely fit for purpose, but
that there were some structural changes that could be made to improve them. There
were also concerns expressed by teachers, employers and universities over what they
term a resit culture. Teachers in particular said A-level students approach
examinations with the expectation that they will always get a second chance."

In the Review of Qualifications conducted by Welsh Government, which reported in
2013, stakeholders were keen to stress the importance of portability and the need for
Welsh learners to have qualifications that are regarded as credible and robust in the
eyes of universities and employers. To ensure this we need to have regard to the
nature of AS/A levels in England and Northern Ireland, where these qualifications are
also taken. Whilst there are differences in qualifications policies between countries the
degree of divergence between countries needs to be actively managed and we believe
that the reintroduction of January examinations would weaken public confidence in
qualifications taken by Welsh learners and threaten portability.

Qualifications Wales Cymwysterau Cymru
Q2 Building, Pencarn Lane Adeilad Q2, L6n Pencarn
Imperial Park, [w Parc Imperial,
Newport X m Casnewydd
NP10 8AR Pa e29 NP10 8AR

& 0333077 2701 www.qualificationswales.org & 0333077 2701

@ )
Us a\


http://qualificationswales.org/Splash
http://qualificationswales.org/Splash
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTlm4RliBmhjXAvyw727EmA/feed
http://qualificationswales.org/Splash
https://twitter.com/quals_wales
http://qualificationswales.org/Splash
http://qualificationswales.org/Splash
http://qualificationswales.org/Splash
mailto:SeneddPetitions@Assembly.Wales

It is our regulatory opinion that the course of action taken by Welsh Government
continues to be in the best interests of learners in Wales. Removing January
assessments frees up time for additional teaching so that learners can develop greater
knowledge and understanding of their subjects. Time which would be dominated by
assessment, and preparation for assessment, if January exams were reintroduced.

Yours sincerely

Philip Blaker

Pack Page 30



Agenda ltem 2.2

P-05-707 Teachers' Training Must Include Statutory Training in Autism

This petition was submitted by Tim Thomas, having collected 313 signatures.
Text of the Petition

We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to ensure

that teachers' training must include statutory training in Autism.

One of the major concerns for people caring for people with Autism is the lack of
understanding from teachers and others working in the education profession. While
teaching in Wales is of high quality, improvements could be made in raising

awareness of Autism, especially given how common it has become in society.

It is proposed, as part of the English Teacher's training review, Special Education

Needs, including Autism will be a key part of teachers' training in England.

The review of the Initial Teacher Education in Wales must ensure that teachers get
specific and statutory training in supporting people with Autism within the school

environment.
Assembly Constituency and Region

e Bridgend
e South Wales West

Pack Page 31



Research Service

. ,f%« Cynulliad National
Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil / Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales

Briefing for the Petitions Committee

Petition number: P-05-707
Petition title: Teachers' Training Must Include Statutory Training in Autism

Text of petition: We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh
Government to ensure that teachers' training must include statutory training in
Autism. One of the major concerns for people caring for people with Autism is the
lack of understanding from teachers and others working in the education profession.
While teaching in Wales is of high quality, improvements could be made in raising
awareness of Autism, especially given how common it has become in society. It is
proposed, as part of the English Teacher's training review, Special Education Needs,
including Autism will be a key part of teachers' training in England. The review of the
Initial Teacher Education in Wales must ensure that teachers get specific and statutory
training in supporting people with Autism within the school environment.

Background

Currently the Welsh Government does not specify the content of Initial Teacher Education
(ITE) courses (sometimes also called initial teacher training (ITT)). Institutions accredited
to provide ITE courses design the content, structure and delivery of training to enable
trainee teachers to demonstrate that they have met the Qualified Teacher Status (QTS)
Standards. These are outcome statements that outline what ITE trainees must know,
understand and be able to do at the end of their course. They are periodically updated by
the Welsh Government, the most recent being made in 2009.

In June 2015, the then Minister for Education and Skills, Huw Lewis said that he accepted
the need to revise and align the qualified teacher status standards to the wider
professional standards for the education workforce and that he had commissioned an
internal reference group to start work on developing the professional standards.

In her letter to the Committee, the Cabinet Secretary for Education, Kirsty Williams said
that reforms will require accredited ITE providers to design and deliver courses that
support the four purposes and the six areas of learning of the new curriculum being
developed following Professor Graham Donaldson’s review.

Previous Assembly action

The issue of special educational needs (although not specifically autism) and ITE has been
considered three times by different Assembly Committees.

The Education and Lifelong Learning Committee’s Inquiry into the early identification of
Special Educational Needs (2004), and the Enterprise and Learning Committee Rapporteur
Group on Dyslexia (2008) recommended that ITE should provide trainee teachers with a
greater understanding of special educational needs (SEN). The Public Accounts

Enquiry no: 16/0723 1 Date: 31 August 2016

Pack Page 32


http://gov.wales/legislation/subordinate/nonsi/educationwales/2009/3220099/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/legislation/subordinate/nonsi/educationwales/2009/3220099/?lang=en
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3173&assembly=4&c=Record%20of%20Proceedings&startDt=23/06/2015&endDt=23/06/2015#227857
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3173&assembly=4&c=Record%20of%20Proceedings&startDt=23/06/2015&endDt=23/06/2015#227857
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/why-we-are-changing/successful-futures/?lang=en
http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/Education%20and%20Lifelong%20Learning%20Committee%20Policy%20Review%20of%20Special%20Educational%20Needs%20Part%201%20Early%20Identificatio-17112004-18793/bus-GUIDE-N0000000000000000000000000026476-English.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/Education%20and%20Lifelong%20Learning%20Committee%20Policy%20Review%20of%20Special%20Educational%20Needs%20Part%201%20Early%20Identificatio-17112004-18793/bus-GUIDE-N0000000000000000000000000026476-English.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/CR-LD7157%20-%20Report%20of%20the%20Enterprise%20and%20Learning%20Committee%20-%20Support%20for%20People%20with%20Dyslexia%20in%20Wales-16072008-93073/cr-ld7157-e-English.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/Laid%20Documents/CR-LD7157%20-%20Report%20of%20the%20Enterprise%20and%20Learning%20Committee%20-%20Support%20for%20People%20with%20Dyslexia%20in%20Wales-16072008-93073/cr-ld7157-e-English.pdf

Research Service

. ,r(%« Cynulliad National
Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil / Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales

Committee’s consideration of Services for children and young people with emotional and
mental health needs (2010) also raised this issue with Welsh Government officials.

The responses provided by the Welsh Government were similar. In summary, they said
that the time available in ITE courses for more specialist areas of study is limited and that
there cannot be comprehensive coverage of every single aspect. More detailed specialist
training in SEN is best undertaken once a teacher has completed their ITE and induction
year.

Autism Bill

As part of the deal between Labour and Plaid Cymru following the May 2016 election, a
pledge was made to introduce an Autism Bill. In July 2016, the First Minister said that the
Welsh Government were considering what legislation might be necessary to strengthen
the rights of service users. In July 2016, the First Minister said that the issue of an
Autism Bill is being considered by the liaison committee, to consider in what way
legislation on autism can be developed, and whether the Autism Action Plan can be
strengthened through being placed on a statutory basis.

The National Autistic Society have been lobbying for the Assembly to introduce an Autism
Bill. Their Act Now: An Autism Act for Wales report suggests that an Autism Bill could
include ‘ensuring that there is a clear framework for training for teachers’.

In a statement on 12 July 2016, the Cabinet Secretary for Education said:

“All practitioners should have the core skills development to support a wide range of
low complexity, but high incidence ALN [additional learning needs] within settings, and
access to ongoing professional development. Each school setting should have
immediate access to one individual with advanced skills. | want to develop the role of
additional learning needs co-ordinators, who will replace the current SENCOs [SEN co-
ordinators]. And all education settings should have access to individuals with specialist
skills, for instance, educational psychologists, teachers of the visually or hearing
impaired, and speech therapy.”

At the Children, Young People and Education Committee on 13 July 2016, the Cabinet
Secretary for Education was asked about specific modules within ITE for autism. She said:

“we are looking at the additional learning needs legislation that we’re bringing forward.
It is about ensuring that everybody in a classroom situation does have some
knowledge of high-incidence, low-complexity additional learning needs.”

Teacher Training Review in England

In England, as in Wales, the Government do not specify the content of ITE courses, but ITE
providers are required to ensure that the design and provision of courses will enable
trainees to demonstrate the standards requires to gain QTS.

In March 2015, Stephen Munday CBE was appointed to chair an independent expert group
to develop a new core content framework for initial teacher training courses. His report, a
Framework of Core Content for Initial Teacher Training was published on 12 July 2016.

In relation to autism the framework states:

Enquiry no: 16/0723 2 Date: 31 August 2016
Pack Page 33


http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/services-children-and-young-people-emotional-and-mental-health-needs
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/services-children-and-young-people-emotional-and-mental-health-needs
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3616&assembly=5&c=Record%20of%20Proceedings#420719
http://www.autism.org.uk/~/media/nas/documents/get-involved/campaign%20for%20change/act-now-wales-2016/act%20now%20report%20web%20english.ashx?la=en-gb
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/pages/rop.aspx?meetingid=3616&assembly=5&c=Record%20of%20Proceedings#420719
http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s52244/13%20July%202016.pdf
http://data.parliament.uk/DepositedPapers/Files/DEP2016-0620/ITT_Framework_Report.docx
http://data.parliament.uk/DepositedPapers/Files/DEP2016-0620/ITT_Framework_Report.docx

Research Service

. ,r(%« Cynulliad National
Y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil / Cenedlaethol Assembly for
Cymru Wales

“[ITT] Providers should equip trainees to analyse the strengths and needs of all pupils
effectively, ensuring that they have an understanding of cognitive, social, emotional,
physical and mental health factors that can inhibit or enhance pupils’ education.
Providers should ensure that trainees understand the principles of the SEND [special
educational needs and disability] Code of Practice, are confident working with the four
broad areas of need it identifies, and are able to adapt teaching strategies to ensure
that pupils with SEND (including, but not limited to, autism, dyslexia, attention deficit
hyperactivity disorder (ADHD), sensory impairment or speech, and language and
communication needs (SLCN)) can access and progress within the curriculum. Providers
should ensure that SEND training is integrated across the ITT programme.”

In response, Nicky Morgan, the then Secretary for Education accepted the
recommendation that the Department for Education adopt the framework. She said that
all ITT providers will need to ensure that their programmes align with the framework.
The Department expects to use the framework as part of the quality criteria for ITT
allocations for the 2018/19 training year.

Every effort is made to ensure that the information contained in this briefing is
correct at the time of publication. Readers should be aware however that these
briefings are not necessarily updated or otherwise amended to reflect subsequent
changes.

Enquiry no: 16/0723 3 Date: 31 August 2016

Pack Page 34


http://data.parliament.uk/DepositedPapers/Files/DEP2016-0620/Nicky_Morgan_ITT_letter.pdf

7
Kirsty Williams AC/AM "y}ﬁ\(

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg 'X

Cabinet Secretary for Education J J’Q

Llywodraeth Cymru

Eich cyf/Your ref P-05-707 Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref KW/05558/16

Mike Hedges AM

Assembly Member for Swansea East
Chair - Petitions Committee

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

government.committee.business@wales.gsi.gov.uk

16 August 2016

Dear Mike

Thank you for your letter of 4 August about a petition received by the Petitions Committee to
make autism training mandatory in Initial Teacher Education (ITE).

The Welsh Government is committed to creating an inclusive education system for all
learners, regardless of their needs and background, to ensure all learners are able to
access a high standard of education and reach their full potential.

On 26 June, the First Minister announced this Government'’s intention to bring forward an
Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill. The Bill will reform the
current legal frameworks for supporting children and young people with SEN and Learning
Difficulties and/or Disabilities (LDD). The changes we intend to make will directly benefit
Wales’ most vulnerable learners and will also improve the operational landscape for
practitioners. The legislation is a key milestone in our reform journey, but it is just one part
of the picture. A Transformation Programme has been developed to take forward the wider
policy developments needed to ensure implementation of the new legislation is a success.
Some of this transformation is already underway.

We have recognised the need to improve the capacity of the education workforce to better
support the needs of learners with SEN and in 2015 concluded a study to better understand
the workforce development requirements of the general education workforce, including in
relation to Autism. The final report has been published and can be accessed via the Welsh
Government website:

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd « Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Kirsty.Williams@llyw.cymru
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Kirsty.Williams@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any coﬁ’)e@tﬁl@eﬁzaggivaﬁn Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Kirsty.Williams@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Kirsty.Williams@gov.wales

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/publications/reports/an-assessment-of-special-
educational-needs-workforce-development-requirements/?lang=en

We are reforming the way in which initial teacher education (ITE) is delivered in Wales and
the reforms planned will require future accredited providers of ITE to design and deliver
courses that support the four purposes of the new curriculum and address the six areas of
learning and experience, which has inclusivity at its heart. In addition, planned changes to
support the Education Workforce aim to offer practitioners, support staff, teachers, leaders
and FE Lecturers in Wales an entitlement to access professional learning opportunities to
develop their practice. This will include training to enable practitioners to deliver on the new
curriculum.

Pioneer Schools have been appointed to support the development of a range of high quality
professional learning to ensure that all practitioners in Wales have the skills in pedagogy
and leadership to be able to successfully deliver the requirements of the new curriculum.
Going forward the Pioneer Schools will have a key role in ensuring that professional
learning needs in relation to SEN are met and they will work in partnership with schools
from across Wales to ensure that this is achieved.

With regard to the professional learning that practitioners engage in after their initial training,
teachers are required to demonstrate that they take account of the needs of learners with
SEN/ALN as part of the requirements of the professional standards. The standards are
currently under review but the revised standards will continue to require teachers to
demonstrate their understanding of the diverse learning needs of all learners.

Meeting the diverse needs of learners may also be identified as a priority in the school’'s
development plan (SDP) which all schools are required to have in place and review at least
annually. The SDP will contain the school’s improvement priorities and objectives, together
with a plan for how they intend to achieve them, including the development needs of the
school workforce. At an individual level, practitioners are required to reflect on their practice
and identify areas for further develo